
 
 

City of Cayce 
Regular Council Meeting 
Tuesday, March 5, 2024 

6:00 p.m. – Cayce City Hall – 1800 12th Street 
www.caycesc.gov  

To Access Council Meeting Livestream, click 
https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams 

I. Call to Order

A. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

B. Approval of Minutes
February 6, 2024 Regular Council Meeting
February 21, 2024 Council Work Session
February 21, 2024 Regular Council Meeting

II. Public Comment Regarding Items on the Agenda

III. Items for Discussion and Possible Approval

A. Discussion and Approval of Letter of Support for the Disposition of Public
Housing for the Cayce Housing Authority

B. Consideration of Fireworks Exemption Request for Hidden City Music Festival

C. Discussion and Approval for the Repair of the Cayce Riverwalk Boardwalk

IV. Ordinance and Resolution

A. Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2024-02 Granting Lumos Fiber of South
Carolina, LLC a Nonexclusive Franchise for the Use of Public Streets and Public
Rights-of-Way for Facilities for Telecommunications Services – Second Reading

B. Consideration and Approval of Resolution Requesting the Lexington County
Delegation to Establish a New County Transportation Committee with a Majority of
Appointees to the Committee from Local Municipalities and Transferring the
Authority of Lexington County Council to the New County Transportation
Committee

V. Committee Matters

A. Approval to Enter the Following Committee Approved Minutes into the City’s
Record

Mayor 
Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem Council Members City Manager      Deputy City  Manager 
          Tim James Phil Carter Tracy Hegler   

             Hunter Sox 
    Byron Thomas

Jim Crosland 

Assistant City Manager 
Michael Conley  

http://www.caycesc.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams


 Standard Technical Codes Board of Appeals – June 15, 2020 
Cayce Housing Authority – October 17, 2023 

 Events Committee – November 9, 2023  
  Museum Commission – January 4, 2024 

Planning Commission – January 22, 2024 
 

B.        Appointments 
  Board of Zoning Appeal – Two (2) Positions  

 
     VI.  City Manager’s Report 

 
 VII.        Council Comments 
 
VIII. Executive Session 
 

A.   Receipt of legal advice relating to claims and potential claims by and against the 
City and other matters covered by the attorney-client privilege 

 
1. Update on Lexington County’s Cancellation of Road Maintenance Agreement 
2. Claim for Improvements to Taylor Street at New State Road 
3. Claim for Improvements to Spencer Place 
4. Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements   

concerning 800 Lexington Avenue 
5. Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements for 

acquisition of property  
   

IX. Reconvene  
 

   X. Possible actions by Council in follow up to Executive Session 
   

  XI. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 SPECIAL NOTE:  Upon request, the City of Cayce will provide this document in 
whatever form necessary for the physically challenged or impaired. 



ITEM I. B. 















ITEM I. B. 





























ITEM I. B. 















Memorandum
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Mayor and Council  

Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

February 1, 2024 

Cayce Housing Authority Support Letter 

Issue 

Council approval is needed for a letter of support for the disposition of public housing for the Cayce 
Housing Authority. 

Background 

The Cayce Housing Authority is proposing to convert forty-one (41) public housing units to project-based 
vouchers. The Cayce Housing Authority Board will continue to provide oversight to all units. This 
conversion has been listed in the five-year strategic plan (2020-2025) created by the Columbia Housing 
Authority and passed by the Cayce Housing Authority Board. This conversion is a recommendation by US 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for all small public housing authorities (PHA). 
Additionally, converting the forty-one units from public housing to project-based vouchers will allow the 
housing authority more security in HUD funding and more flexibility in addressing the needs of a 
continued aging housing stock.  

Columbia Housing Authority: “HUD has encouraged all PHA’s to consider conversion and has particularly 
encouraged small PHA’s to exit the public housing program. In December 2018, HUD issued a specific 
process under which PHA’s with less than 50 units can dispose of the public housing simply because 
there are less than 50 units. Specifically, for Cayce, we propose to convert the units to project based 
voucher which will increase annual revenue for the properties and enable us to secure financing for 
future renovations of the properties.” 

Recommendation 

It is the discretion of the Council whether they support the proposed action of the Cayce Housing 
Authority. Since HUD is requiring a support letter from the City prior to the Cayce Housing Board 
Resolution, staff requests, if Council chooses to support the conversion, that you authorize the City 
Manager to execute the support letter.  

ITEM III. A. 



1917 Harden Street 
Columbia, South Carolina 29204 

(803) 254-3886

October 17, 2023 

Special Applications Center 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

RE:  Section 18 Disposition of Public Housing, Less than 50 Units 

Dear SAC, 

This letter is to express the support of the City of Cayce to dispose of the existing 41 public 
housing units through conversion to Project Based Vouchers. 

The City supports the Housing Authority’s decision to exit the Public Housing program to minimize 
the administrative burden for the small housing authority and to enable the ability to secure private 
financing in the future to support additional renovations of the existing units. 

We understand that a twenty-year Housing Assistance Payments Contract will be provided for 
the 41 units which will assure continued affordability for the citizens of Cayce. 

Cayce Housing Authority has a Management Agreement with the Housing Authority of the City of 
Columbia executed in 1981.  Under this Management Agreement, Columbia Housing will 
administer the Project Based Vouchers for the units located in the City of Cayce. 

If you have any questions or need any additional information, you may contact 

Sincerely, 

ITEM III. A. 



Memorandum
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council  

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: March 4, 2024 

Subject: Fireworks Exemption for Hidden City Music Festival 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Issue 
Council’s approval is needed to grant the Hidden City Music Festival an exemption from Ordinance 
Sec: 20-46 Discharge of Fireworks and Sec: 20-47 Exceptions.  

Discussion 
Per City Ordinance, it is unlawful to fire, shoot or discharge fireworks within the corporate limits of 
the City, with a few exceptions. 

Ordinance Sec: 20-47 Exceptions states that: Notwithstanding the provisions of section 20-46, the 
discharge or shooting of fireworks may be permitted under the following circumstances: 

(4) The discharging or shooting of fireworks in conjunction with a special event to the extent allowed
under the terms of the permit issued by the public safety director and approved by council.

Hidden City Music Festival is currently working on their special events permit to host a concert on 
March 30, 2024 at the Historic Columbia Speedway located on Charleston Highway. The event will 
start at 2:00pm and last until approximately 10:30pm. They are requesting an exception under the 
listed ordinance to have fireworks at their event (see description from applicant attached). 

To our knowledge, Hidden City has not received their permit through the State which is required, and 
which will establish the time limits for the display.  Hidden City has also requested a noise waiver to 
10:40pm, indicating music will conclude at 10:30pm.  By ordinance, the noise waiver is approved by 
the City Manager, pending certain criteria.  An extension was granted last year (2023) to 10:30pm, 
coinciding with the timing of the approved state firework permit.   

Staff is attempting to be proactive on bringing this request forward, despite not having the State 
permit, and would note that if Council is inclined to approve the firework exception, that it is done 
conditioned on receiving a permit from the state.  Council will also need to define the hours of the 
fireworks display.  The City’s Police and Fire Chiefs both wish to note that an extension of music to 
10:30 (and consistent with the event application), would mean that staff are working until 11:30pm, 
making for a very long day. 

Recommendation 
Hidden Music Festival is requesting Council approve the Exception (4) under ordinance Sec 20-47. 

ITEM III. B. 



ITEM III. B. 





SPECIAL EVENT FIREWORKS PERMIT 
 (Pursuant to City Code section 20-47(4)) 

EVENT APPLICANT NAME  ________________________ 

PYROTECHNIC COMPANY ________________________ 

EVENT LOCATION _______________________________ 

EVENT DATE ___________________________________ 

TERMS OF FIREWORKS PERMIT     
1. Event applicant and pyrotechnic company agree to comply with any and all Federal,

State and municipal regulations and requirements as to licensing, insurance, and permits, 
including the terms of any Permit issued by the Office of State Fire Marshal. 

2. Event applicant and pyrotechnic company agree to cease use of fireworks immediately
upon direction and in the sole discretion of the Cayce Fire Chief or his designee or the Cayce 
Police Chief or his designee. 

3. Event applicant and pyrotechnic company agree that this Permit may be revoked
immediately for violation of any term of this Permit as determined in the sole discretion of the 
Cayce Fire Chief or his designee or the Cayce Police Chief or his designee.  

4. Hours of use or display of fireworks shall be 7:00 p.m. to [8:00 or 8:30 or 9:00] p.m.
5. No later than 24 hours prior to the commencement of the event, applicant shall post

cash or check in the amount of $2,500 with the City Clerk as a bond against any violation of the 
terms of this Permit or any failure to comply with the terms of this Permit. The bond shall be 
refundable in the event of no violation of terms in the determination of both the Cayce Fire Chief 
or his designee and the Cayce Police Chief or his designee.  

ISSUED BY CAYCE FIRE CHIEF          APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL 

By ___________________________     By ________________________ 

ACCEPTED BY EVENT APPLICANT  ACCEPTED BY PYROTECNIC COMPANY 

By __________________________    By _________________________ 

ITEM III. B. 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: March 4, 2024 

Subject: Discussion and Approval for the repair of the Cayce Riverwalk Boardwalk 

Issue 

Council’s approval is needed to approve a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) fund expenditure for 
the repair of the Cayce Riverwalk boardwalk which is located near the train trestle along the 
Riverwalk.  

Discussion 

Over the past few months, the Congaree River has experienced several severe flood levels – 
one event last month caused the entire Riverwalk and the Thomas Newman Public Boat 
Landing to flood. This flooding caused severe structural damage to the boardwalk located 
between the train trestle and the Kelley Jones Park. That portion of the Riverwalk has been 
closed since and will remain closed until the repair has been completed.   

Our on-call General Contractor, 3D Dirtworks, who has provided regular maintenance for our 
Riverwalk over the years, provided a cost estimate for this project of $275,000, with a 
recommendation that we add an additional $25,000 contingency, bringing the total to 
$300,000.  The contingency is for any unforeseen additional damage that may be discovered 
during construction.   

The City’s TIF fund currently holds a fund balance of $4,671,092. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends Council approve 3D Dirtworks to repair the boardwalk in the not to exceed 
amount of $300,000 and authorize the City Manager to execute appropriate agreements. The 
funds will be allocated from the TIF fund. 

ITEM III. C. 



Memorandum
To:    Mayor and Council   

From:    Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date:    March 4, 2024 

Subject:  Lumos Franchise Ordinance and Agreement – Second Reading 

Issue 

Council approval is needed to accept the franchise agreement with Lumos Fiber of South Carolina, LLC. 

Background 

The City seeks to enter into a franchise agreement with Lumos Fiber of South Carolina, LLC. Pursuant to 
Title 5, Chapter 7, Section 30 of  the South Carolina Code and Title 58, Chapter 9, Section 2230 of  the 
South  Carolina  Code,  the  City  has  been  granted  by  the  General  Assembly  the  ability  to  enter  into 
Franchise Agreements with  telecommunication companies wishing  to operate  in  their  jurisdiction and 
using its public rights‐of‐way. This power is further expressed through Section 17 of the Cayce City Code 
of Ordinances.  

The  proposed  franchise  agreement  allows  greater  transparency  on  behalf  of  both  parties.  The 
agreement is compliant with Telecommunications Act of 1999 which greatly restricts the City’s ability to 
impose any statutorily fixed franchise fee outside of the established range, which is defined by the City’s 
population.  

Over  the  last  couple  months,  the  City  has  continued  to  negotiate  optimally  with  Lumos.    A  new 
agreement  is  attached  for  Council’s  consideration.    In  lieu  of  the  $750  franchise  fee  allowed  by  the 
Telecommunications Act, Lumos has agreed to install access at five (5) City parks. 

Recommendation 

Staff  recommends  City  Council  give  Second  Reading  approval  to  Ordinance  2024‐02  proposing  a 
franchise agreement with Lumos Fiber of South Carolina, LLC and authorize the City Manager to execute 
the agreement on its behalf.  

ITEM IV. A. 



1 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT WITH LUMOS FIBER OF SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC 

This Nonexclusive Franchise Agreement (hereinafter "Agreement") is made and 
entered into as of this   day of  2024 (“Effective Date”), by and between the 
CITY OF CAYCE, a South Carolina municipal corporation (hereinafter "City" or "Grantor") 
and LUMOS FIBER OF SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability 
company, (hereinafter “LUMOS” or “GRANTEE”), having its principal office at 4100 
Mendenhall Oaks Pkwy, Suite 300, High Point, NC 27265. 

WHEREAS, GRANTEE is a limited liability company duly organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of South Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, GRANTEE desires to use and occupy the streets and public rights-of- 
way (as hereinafter defined) located within the City for the purposes of constructing, 
installing, and maintaining network facilities for telecommunications services within and 
through the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 5, Chapter 7, Section 30 of the South Carolina Code, 
and Title 58, Chapter 9, Section 2230 of the South Carolina Code, the City has the authority 
to grant franchises and other authorizations for the use and occupancy of the streets and public 
rights-of-way; and 

WHEREAS, the City is agreeable to allowing GRANTEE to use the streets and 
public rights-of-way, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth and subject 
to any lawful telecommunications regulatory ordinance that may be adopted by the City in 
the future; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set 
forth herein, the City and GRANTEE agree as follows: 

Section 1. Grant of Authority. (a) Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the City 
hereby grants to GRANTEE the non-exclusive right to construct, install, maintain, locate, 
move, operate, place, protect, reconstruct, reinstall, relocate, remove, and replace fiber optic 
or other cable and related facilities for the provision of telecommunications service in the 
public streets and public rights-of-way in the City of Cayce. GRANTEE shall be solely 
responsible for obtaining any required consents from State agencies or from Lexington 
County and/or Richland County or from private parties to the extent that its operations affect 

ITEM IV. A. 



2  

State, County or private property, or affects their roads, streets or highways or their rights-
of-way or easements. 

 
(b) GRANTEE acknowledges that this grant of authority is for the benefit of 

GRANTEE only, and that GRANTEE is not authorized to lease, sublease, assign or 
otherwise allow other providers to use or occupy the public rights-of-way except in 
accordance with provisions of this Agreement. 

 
(c) GRANTEE acknowledges that, to the extent allowed by State and Federal 

law, the City has the authority, to adopt ordinances regulating the use of the public rights- 
of-way, so long as such ordinances apply equally to all certificated providers of 
telecommunications services and are related to using the public streets and public rights-of- 
way in the City. GRANTEE agrees to be bound by all such future lawful ordinances so long 
as it operates telecommunication services or has property or equipment within the public 
streets or rights-of-way located in the City. 

 
(d) This Agreement is not a grant by the City of any fee simple or other property 

interest except as expressly contemplated by this Agreement and is made subject and 
subordinate to the prior and continuing right of the City to use the public streets and public 
rights-of-way occupied by GRANTEE for the purpose of laying, installing, maintaining, 
repairing, protecting, replacing, and removing sanitary sewers, water mains, storm drains, 
gas mains, poles and other equipment for municipal uses and with the right of ingress and 
egress, along, above, over, across and in said public streets and public rights- of-way, or for 
any public purpose. 

(e) This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
approval by the City Council governing body; provided, however, that notwithstanding such 
approval, this Agreement shall not become effective until all required bonds, certificates of 
insurance and other instruments required by this Agreement have been filed with, and 
accepted and approved by the City, which acceptance and approval shall not be unreasonably 
delayed, conditioned, or withheld. 

 
Section 2. Definitions. For the purpose of this Agreement, and the interpretation 

and enforcement thereof, the following words and phrases shall have the following 
meanings, unless the context of the sentence in which they are used shall indicate 
otherwise: 

 
"Affiliate" means a person or entity that directly, or indirectly, through one or 

more intermediaries, owns, controls, is owned or controlled by, or is under common 
ownership or control with another person or entity. 



3  

 
"Cable service" shall have the same meaning as in the 47 U.S. Code § 522 and 

shall be synonymous with the term "cable television service." 
 

"City" means the City of Cayce, South Carolina, and where appropriate to the 
context, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

 
"City Attorney" means the City Attorney of the City of Cayce or his/her designee. 

 
“City Council” means the City Council of the City of Cayce. 

 
"City Engineer" means the City Engineer or his/her designee. 

 
"City Manager" means the City Manager of the City of Cayce or his/her designee. 

 
"City Property" means and includes all real property owned by the City, including all 

property held in a proprietary capacity by the City. 
 

"Conduit" means any materials, such as metal or plastic pipe, that protects wire, 
cable, lines, fiber optic cable, or other technology for the provision of 
telecommunications service. 

"Duct" means a pipe, tube, channel, or similar item for carrying wires, lines, cables, 
fiber optic cable, or other technology for the provision of telecommunications service. 

 
“Fiber optic or other cable and related facilities” means fiber optic cables or other 

cables, facilities, conduits, converters, splice boxes, handholds, manholes, vaults, equipment, 
drains, surface location markers, appurtenances and related facilities located or to be located 
by GRANTEE in the public streets or rights-of-way in the City used or useful for the 
transmission of telecommunications services. 

 
"GRANTEE" or "Lumos" means Lumos Fiber of South Carolina, LLC. 

 
"Grantor" means the City of Cayce. 

 
"Public streets and public rights-of-way" or “public ways” include the surface of, 

and the space above and below, any public street, road, highway, avenue, sidewalk, way, 
bridge, viaduct, alley or other public right-of-way, including unimproved surfaces, now 
or hereafter held by or within the City for the purpose of public travel, communications, 
alarm, street lighting, power distribution, water or sewer service or other public use, 



4  

whether present or future, to the extent of the City's right, title, interest or authority to 
grant a franchise to occupy and use such streets and easements for the purpose of 
providing telecommunications services. 

 
“Public works project or public improvements” include, without limitation, the 

construction, realignment, paving or repaving, or other work on any public street or public 
right-of-way, change of grade or alignment of any public street or public right-of-way, the 
construction or reconstruction of any water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, force main, 
drainage or communications facility of the City. 

 
“Telecommunications facilities” means the plant, equipment, and property, 

including, but not limited to, the poles, pipes, mains, conduits, ducts, fiber optic and 
other cables, circuits, and wires, and any other equipment and property used by 
GRANTEE to provide telecommunications service. 

 
"Telecommunications service" means the providing or offering for rent, sale, or 

lease, or in exchange for other value received, the transmittal of signals, including but 
not limited to, voice, data, image, graphic or video or other programming information, 
except cable television service, between or among points by wire, lines, cable, fiber 
optics, circuits, laser or infrared, microwave, radio, satellite, or other 
telecommunications facilities, but not including cable television service. 

 

Section 3. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be for an initial 
term of twenty years, commencing on the Effective Date (“Initial Term”). Unless either 
party gives ninety (90) days written notice of its intention to terminate the Agreement prior 
to the end of the Initial Term, the Agreement shall thereafter automatically renew for up to 
three (3) additional ten (10) year terms, for a maximum of fifty (50) years (each a “Renewal 
Term”); however, such renewal shall not automatically occur if a material, uncured breach 
has not been remedied and the non-breaching party provides ninety (90) days written notice 
prior to the end of a Renewal Term. Upon termination of this Agreement as herein provided, 
and unless the parties are in active good faith negotiation of a replacement agreement or 
otherwise agree in writing to an extension, GRANTEE shall be prohibited from further 
access to the public rights-of-way in the City. 

 
Section 4. Compliance With Applicable Law. GRANTEE shall at all times 

during the term of this Agreement, including any renewal period, comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations. Expressly reserved 
to the City is the right to adopt, in addition to the provisions of this Agreement and 
existing laws, such additional ordinances and regulations as are necessary for the lawful 



5  

exercise of its police power for the benefit and safety of the public. 
 

Section 5. Construction; Location or Relocation of Facilities. All GRANTEE 
facilities shall be constructed, installed, and located according to the terms and 
conditions contained herein, unless otherwise specified by the City. 

 
5.1. Whenever all existing electric utilities, cable facilities or telecommunications 

facilities are located underground within a particular segment of a street or public right- 
of-way of the C i t y ,  GRANTEE shall also install its telecommunications f a c i l i t i e s 
underground. 

 
5.2. Whenever existing overhead electric utilities, cable facilities or 

telecommunications facilities are relocated underground within a particular segment of a 
street or public right-of-way of the City, GRANTEE shall relocate its facilities underground 
within a  r e a s o n a b l e  a m o u n t  o f  t i m e  a f t e r  notification by the City that such 
facilities must be relocated. Absent extraordinary circumstances or undue hardship as 
reasonably determined by the City, such relocation shall be made concurrently to minimize 
the disruption of the public streets or public rights-of-way. 

 
5.3. GRANTEE shall obtain all required permits for the construction or installation 

of its facilities as required in this Agreement, provided, however, that nothing in this 
Agreement shall prohibit the City and GRANTEE from agreeing to an alternative plan to 
review permit and construction procedures, provided such alternative procedures provide 
substantially equivalent safeguards for responsible construction practices. 

 
5.4. In the performance and exercise of its rights and obligations under this 

Agreement, GRANTEE shall not interfere in any manner with the existence and operation 
of any public street and public or private right-of-way, sanitary sewer, water line, storm drain 
gas main, pole, overhead or underground electric and telephone wires, television cables, 
public works, facilities of other telecommunication providers, or City Property, without the 
prior approval of the City or the applicable owner or other party responsible for such 
infrastructure. The Parties acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and requirements of any 
other public entity or other third-party with respect to GRANTEE'S interference with the 
facilities or infrastructure of such entity or third-party are beyond the scope of this 
Agreement and governed by applicable laws and regulations, and the City makes no 
representations with respect to any such rights, obligations, or requirements. 

 
5.5. Except as may be expressly provided herein, nothing in this Agreement shall be 

construed to abrogate or limit the right of the City to perform any public works or public 



6  

improvements. If any facilities of GRANTEE interfere with the construction, operation, 
maintenance, repair or removal of such public works or public improvements, within ninety 
(90) days after written notice by the City (or such other period of time set forth in Section 
5.7 or as may be agreed upon in writing by the City and GRANTEE), GRANTEE shall, at its 
own expense, protect, alter, remove or relocate facilities, as directed by the City Manager or 
City Engineer. If GRANTEE fails to so protect, alter, remove, or relocate equipment within 
such period, the City may break through, remove, alter, or relocate the facilities of 
GRANTEE without any liability to City, and GRANTEE shall pay to the City the costs 
incurred in connection with such breaking through, removal, alteration, or relocation. 
GRANTEE shall also reimburse the City for or bear any additional cost actually incurred by 
the City as a result of GRANTEE’s failure to comply with the City's request to protect, alter or 
remove equipment under this Agreement. The City may collect such costs, and any 
reasonable expenses and attorney fees incurred in collecting such costs, as debts owed to the 
City, by bringing action in any court of competent jurisdiction or exercising the City's rights 
to draw on bonds or in any other lawful manner, individually or in combination. The Parties 
acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and requirements of any other public entity or other 
third-party with respect to the construction, operation, maintenance, repair or removal of 
such public works or public improvements or other infrastructure are beyond the scope of 
this Agreement and governed by applicable laws and regulations, and the City makes no 
representations with respect to any such rights, obligations, or requirements. 

 
 

5.6. The City retains the right and privilege to cut or move any 
telecommunications facilities located within the public ways or other areas of the City as the 
City may determine to be necessary, appropriate, or useful in response to any life- threatening 
emergency. The City will endeavor to provide prior notice to GRANTEE of such 
emergencies which may impact its telecommunications facilities. If the City is unable to 
provide prior notice of the life-threatening emergency as described above, the City shall be 
required to notify GRANTEE within twenty-four (24) hours of the occurrence of such 
emergency. The Parties acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and requirements of any 
other public entity or other third-party with respect to such entity of third-party's response to 
any emergency situation are beyond the scope of this Agreement and governed by applicable 
laws and regulations, and the City makes no representations with respect to any such rights, 
obligations, or requirements. 

 
5.7. The facilities of GRANTEE shall be located so as not to interfere with 

public safety or, to the extent possible, with the convenience of persons using the public 
streets or rights-of-way. GRANTEE shall construct, maintain, and locate its 
telecommunications facilities so as not to interfere with the construction, location and 



7  

maintenance of sewer, water, drainage, electrical, signal, and fiber optic facilities of the 
City. The Parties acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and requirements of any other 
public entity or other third-party with respect to GRANTEE'S location of 
telecommunications facilities are beyond the scope of this Agreement and governed by 
applicable laws and regulations, and the City makes no representations with respect to any 
such rights, obligations, or requirements. 

 
5.8. The City shall have the right, but not the obligation, to specifically 

designate the location of the facilities of GRANTEE with reference to sewer and water 
mains, drainage facilities, fiber optic cable, signal poles and lines and similar services, 
other facilities, such as public telephone utilities, public electric utilities, cable television 
facilities, and railway, communication, and power lines, in such a manner as to protect 
the public safety and public and private property. Failure by the City to designate the 
location of GRANTEE’s facilities shall not relieve GRANTEE of its responsibilities 
in matters of public safety, as provided in this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge that 
the rights, obligations, and requirements of any other public entity or other third-party with 
respect to the specific location of GRANTEE'S telecommunications facilities are beyond the 
scope of this Agreement and governed by applicable laws and regulations, and the City 
makes no representations with respect to any such rights, obligations, or requirements. 

 
5.9. Except in the cases of emergencies, GRANTEE shall not move, alter, 

change, or extend any of its telecommunications facilities in any public street or public right- 
of-way unless prior written notice of its intention to do so is given to the C i t y  
M a n a g e r  and permission in writing to do so is granted, or such requirement is waived, 
by the City Manager. The City Manager shall either approve or deny GRANTEE’s 
request to relocate its facilities within five (5) days of receipt of GRANTEE’s request. 
Such permission shall be not be unreasonably withheld by the City Manager and shall be 
conditioned upon compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, with such 
other terms and conditions as will preserve, protect and promote the safety of the public 
using the public ways, and as will prevent undue interference with or obstruction of the 
use of the public ways by the public, the City or by any other public utility, public service 
corporation or cable operator for their respective purposes and functions. Such work by 
GRANTEE shall also be coordinated with any City paving program through the Office 
of the City Engineer. The Parties acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and requirements 
of any other public entity or other third-party with respect to the changed location of 
GRANTEE'S telecommunications facilities are beyond the scope of this Agreement and 
governed by applicable laws and regulations, and the City makes no representations with 
respect to any such rights, obligations, or requirements. 

 



8  

5.10. GRANTEE shall not open, disturb or obstruct, at any time, any more of 
the public streets or public rights-of-way than is reasonably necessary to enable it to 
proceed in laying or repairing its telecommunications facilities. GRANTEE shall not 
permit any public street or public right-of-way so opened, disturbed, or obstructed by it 
to remain open, disturbed, or obstructed for a longer period of time than shall be 
reasonably necessary. In all cases where any public street or public right-of-way is 
excavated, disturbed, or obstructed by GRANTEE, GRANTEE shall take all precautions 
necessary or proper for the protection of the public and shall maintain adequate warning signs, 
barricades, signals, and other devices necessary or proper to adequately give notice, protection, 
and warning to, the public of the existence of all actual conditions present. The Parties 
acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and requirements of any other public entity or other 
third-party with respect to the disturbance or obstruction of the public streets or rights-of-
way under the ownership or control of such entity are beyond the scope of this Agreement 
and governed by applicable laws and regulations, and the City makes no representations with 
respect to any such rights, obligations, or requirements.  

5.11. After the installation, removal, relocation, construction, or maintenance 
of the fiber optic or other cable and related facilities is completed, GRANTEE shall, at 
its own cost, repair and return the public streets or public rights-of-way to a minimum 
of the same or similar condition existing before such installation, removal, relocation, 
construction, or maintenance, in a manner as may be reasonably specified by the City 
and to the reasonable satisfaction of the City. GRANTEE shall be responsible for 
damage to City street pavements, existing utilities, curbs, gutters, and sidewalks due to 
GRANTEE’s installation, construction, maintenance, repair, or removal of its 
telecommunications facilities in the public streets, public rights-of-way, and shall repair, 
replace, and restore in kind, the said damaged property at its sole expense. Upon failure 
of GRANTEE to repair, replace and restore said damaged property, in a manner as may 
be reasonably specified by the City and to the reasonable satisfaction of the City, after 
sixty (60) days’ notice in writing shall have been given by the City, the City may cause 
such necessary repairs to be made and may collect the costs incurred from GRANTEE, 
including but not limited to, exercising the City's rights to draw on bonds. The City may 
collect such costs, and any expenses and attorney fees incurred in collecting such costs, 
as debts owed to the City, by bringing an action in any court of competent jurisdiction 
or in any manner allowed by law. The Parties acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and 
requirements of any other public entity or other third-party with respect to the repair, 
replacement, or restoration of such entity's public streets or public rights-of-way are beyond 
the scope of this Agreement and governed by applicable laws and regulations, and the City 
makes no representations with respect to any such rights, obligations, or requirements.  

 
5.12. Neither GRANTEE, nor any person acting on GRANTEE’s behalf, shall 



9  

take any action or permit any action to be done which may impair or damage any City 
Property more than is reasonably necessary to enable it to install or repair its 
telecommunications facilities, including, but not limited to, any public street, public right- 
of-way or other property located in, on or adjacent thereto. 

 
5.13. In the event of an unexpected repair or emergency, GRANTEE may 

commence such repair and emergency response work as required under the 
circumstances, provided GRANTEE shall notify the City as promptly as possible, before 
such repair or emergency work is started or as soon thereafter as possible if advance 
notice is not practicable. The Parties acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and 
requirements of any other public entity or other third-party with respect to such unexpected 
or emergency repair work are beyond the scope of this Agreement and governed by 
applicable laws and regulations, and the City makes no representations with respect to any 
such rights, obligations, or requirements.  

 
5.14. GRANTEE shall maintain its facilities in good and safe condition and in a 

manner that complies with all applicable federal, state and local requirements, laws, 
ordinances, and regulations. 

(a) GRANTEE shall at all times keep and maintain its facilities free of all 
graffiti located thereon. If the City notifies the GRANTEE that graffiti is located on the 
facilities, GRANTEE shall remove the graffiti within (30) days of written notice. If 
GRANTEE defaults in its obligations hereunder, the City may perform the necessary 
work and charge the reasonable cost thereof to and collect the same from the GRANTEE. 

(b) GRANTEE shall keep facilities free of debris and anything dangerous 
and/or noxious which would create a hazard or undue vibration, heat, noise or 
interference. 

 
5.15. GRANTEE shall at all times employ a high standard of care and shall install 

and maintain and use approved methods and devices for preventing failure or accidents 
which are likely to cause damages, injuries, or nuisances to the public. 

 
5.16. GRANTEE shall obtain all required permits from the City and any other 

governmental entity having jurisdiction prior to commencing work of any nature and 
shall comply with all terms and conditions of any such permit. GRANTEE shall furnish 
detailed plans of the work and other required information. GRANTEE shall comply with 
all applicable ordinances and permitting requirements.  

5.17. A single permit may be issued by the City, where City permits are applicable 
and required, for multiple excavations to be made in public streets and rights-of-way. Exceptions 
to the requirement for a written permit may be allowed in cases of emergencies involving public 



10  

safety or restoration of service. In the case of emergency excavations made in a public street or 
public right-of-way without a permit, GRANTEE shall make a report of each such excavation to 
the City within 24 hours.. Any permit application and inspection related to repair of excavations 
shall be promptly acted upon by the City so as not to unreasonably delay GRANTEE in 
efficiently discharging its public service obligation and in any event shall be granted or denied 
within thirty (30) days from submission and, if denied, accompanied by a written explanation of 
the reasons the permit was denied and the actions required to cure the denial. The Parties 
acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and requirements of any other public entity or other 
third-party with respect to the permitting requirements of such entity are beyond the scope 
of this Agreement and governed by applicable laws and regulations, and the City makes no 
representations with respect to any such rights, obligations, or requirements.  

 
 

5.18. (a) Promptly after installation, repair or extension of the 
telecommunications facilities or any portion thereof or any pavement cut by GRANTEE 
in any public way of the City, the incidental trenches or excavations shall be refilled by 
GRANTEE in a manner acceptable to the City Manager. Pavement, sidewalks, curbs, 
gutters or any other portions of public ways damaged, disturbed or destroyed by such 
work shall be promptly restored and replaced with like materials to their former 

5.19. condition by GRANTEE at its own expense; however, where it is necessary, and 
if authorized by the City, in order to achieve the former conditions, GRANTEE shall use materials 
whose type, specification and quantities exceed or are different from those used in the installation, 
then GRANTEE at its own expense shall provide such different materials. Where a cut or 
disturbance is made in a section of sidewalk or paving, rather than replacing only the area actually 
cut, GRANTEE shall replace the full width of the existing sidewalk or appropriate sections of 
paving as determined by the City Engineer and the full length of the section or sections cut, a 
section being defined as that area marked by expansion joints or scoring or as determined by the 
City Engineer. GRANTEE shall maintain, repair, and keep in good condition for a period of one 
(1) year following such disturbance all portions of public ways disturbed by GRANTEE, 
provided such maintenance and repair shall be necessary because of defective workmanship or 
materials supplied by GRANTEE. The Parties acknowledge that the rights, obligations, and 
requirements of any other public entity or other third-party with respect to the repair, 
replacement, or restoration of such entity's public streets or public rights-of-way are beyond 
the scope of this Agreement and governed by applicable laws and regulations, and the City 
makes no representations with respect to any such rights, obligations, or requirements.  
 

 
(b)  All trees, landscaping and grounds removed, damaged, or disturbed as a 

result of the construction, installation maintenance, repair or replacement of 
telecommunications facilities shall be replaced or restored, as nearly as may be practicable, 



11  

to the condition existing prior to performance of work. All restoration work within the public 
ways or other areas shall be done in accordance with landscape plans approved by the City, 
as well as any other applicable authority. 

 
5.20. (a) GRANTEE shall promptly remove or correct any obstruction, damage, 

or defect in any public street or public right-of-way caused by GRANTEE in the 
installation, operation, maintenance, or extension of GRANTEE’s telecommunications 
facilities. Any such obstruction, damage, or defect which is not promptly removed, 
repaired, or corrected by GRANTEE after thirty (30) days’ notice to do so, given by the 
City to GRANTEE, may be removed or corrected by the City, and the cost thereof shall 
be charged against GRANTEE and payable on demand. Any expense, cost, or damages 
incurred for repair, relocation, or replacement to Ci ty  water, sanitary sewer, storm 
sewer, storm drainage, telecommunication facilities or other property resulting from 
construction or maintenance of GRANTEE telecommunications facilities shall be borne 
by GRANTEE and any and all expense and cost incurred in connection therewith by the 
City shall be fully reimbursed by GRANTEE to the City. The Parties acknowledge that 
the rights, obligations, and requirements of any other public entity or other third-party with 
respect to obstruction of such entity's public streets or public rights-of-way are beyond the 
scope of this Agreement and governed by applicable laws and regulations, and the City 
makes no representations with respect to any such rights, obligations, or requirements.  

  (b) If weather or other conditions do not permit the complete restoration 
required by this Section, GRANTEE shall temporarily restore the affected property. Such 
temporary restoration shall be at GRANTEE’s sole expense and GRANTEE shall only be 
required to make reasonable, temporary restorations based on the conditions. GRANTEE 
shall promptly undertake and complete the required permanent when the weather or other 
conditions no longer prevent such permanent restoration. The Parties acknowledge that the rights, 
obligations, and requirements of any other public entity or other third-party with respect to the 
repair, replacement, or restoration of such entity's public streets or public rights-of-way or other 
infrastructure or facilities are beyond the scope of this Agreement and governed by applicable 
laws and regulations, and the City makes no representations with respect to any such rights, 
obligations, or requirements.  

 
 

(b) GRANTEE or other person acting on its behalf shall use suitable barricades, 
flags, flaggers, lights, flares and other measures as required for the safety of all members of 
the general public and to prevent injury or damage to any person, vehicle or property by 
reason of such work in or affecting such ways or property and shall comply with all federal, 
state, and local laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, the flagging requirements 
of the South Carolina Department of Transportation. 



12  

 
5.21. Except in the case of the City's g r o s s  negligence or intentional or willful 

misconduct, the City, its officers, agents, or employees, shall not be liable for any damage to 
or loss of any of GRANTEE’s telecommunications services or telecommunications facilities 
within the public ways or any other areas of the City as a result of or in connection with any 
public works, public improvements, construction, excavation, grading, filling, or work or 
activity or lack of any activity of any kind by or on behalf of the Ci ty . 

 
5.22. GRANTEE shall cooperate with the City in coordinating its construction 

activities as follows: 
 

(a) GRANTEE shall provide the City with a schedule of its proposed 
construction activities prior to commencing any expansion of its backbone system; 

 
(b) Upon request, GRANTEE shall meet with the City and other users of the 

public ways to coordinate construction in the public ways; and 
 

(c) All construction locations, activities and schedules shall be coordinated, as 
directed by the City Engineer, to minimize public inconvenience, disruption, or damages. 
GRANTEE shall submit a written construction schedule to the City Engineer at least ten 
(10) working days before commencing any work in or about the public streets or public 
rights-of-way. GRANTEE shall further notify the City Engineer not less than five (5) 
working days in advance of such excavation or work and shall comply with the provisions 
of the South Carolina Underground Facility Damage Prevention Act, South Carolina Title 
58, Chapter 36. 

 
Section 6. Mapping. (a) GRANTEE shall maintain an accurate map of its 

telecommunications facilities in the City. GRANTEE shall provide the City with "as built" 
drawings and an accurate map or maps showing the location of its facilities, including pole 
lines and conduit lines and any other facilities requested by the City, to include a digitized 
map(s) in both printed and electronic form. GRANTEE shall, upon request, provide 



13  

updated maps annually of telecommunications facilities in the City. 
 

(b) If any of the requested information of GRANTEE in this Agreement is 
considered proprietary, confidential or a trade secret, GRANTEE will notify the City of this 
opinion and the City will keep such information confidential to the extent permitted by the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act (South Carolina Code Title 30 Chapter 4) or 
other any successor statute or law. As for new installations, after the effective date of this 
franchise, GRANTEE shall submit the proposed Mapping of its plans for new construction 
to the City prior to any construction. As-built drawings of any new construction of facilities 
shall be furnished to the City within sixty (60) days of completion of such construction. All as-
built maps and drawings shall be drawn to scale and reference to a physical City benchmark 
to the extent the physical benchmark is in reasonable proximity to GRANTEE new 
installation. All mapping shall be provided in a format compatible to the City's present and 
future mapping systems. Alternatively, GRANTEE will pay for the cost of making the 
mapping compatible. 

 
(c) Prior to its installation of any Telecommunications facilities in the public 

streets or public rights-of-way and after GRANTEE provides the City with its proposed plans 
for the Telecommunications facilities, the City may in its reasonable discretion designate 
certain locations to be excluded from use by GRANTEE for its Telecommunications 
facilities, including, but not limited to, ornamental or similar specially designed streets lights 
or other facilities or locations which, in the reasonable judgment of the City Engineer, do not 
have electrical service adequate for or appropriate for GRANTEE’s facilities or cannot safely 
bear the weight or wind loading thereof, or any other facility or location that in the reasonable 
judgment of the City Engineer is incompatible with the proposed Telecommunications 
facilities or would be rendered unsafe or unstable by the installation. The City Engineer may 
further exclude certain other facilities that have been designated or planned for other use or 
are not otherwise proprietary, legal, or other limitations or restrictions as may be reasonably 
determined by the City. In the event such exclusions conflict with reasonable requirements 
of GRANTEE, the City will cooperate in good faith with GRANTEE to attempt to find 
suitable alternatives, if available, provided that the City shall not be required to incur financial 
costs nor require the City to acquire new locations for GRANTEE. GRANTEE shall, prior to 
any excavation or installation within the public streets or public rights-of-way, provide 
sufficient notification and joint installation opportunity on a shared cost basis to potential 
users of the public streets or public rights-of- way as may be provided for by a separate City 
policy. Such notification and adopted policies shall be designed to maximize co-location of 
providers to minimize the disturbance to the public streets or public rights-of-way and 
maximize its useable capacity. 



14  

Section 7. Insurance Requirements. At all times during the term of this Agreement 
and any renewal period, GRANTEE shall, at its expense, maintain the following insurance 
policies. Any required insurance shall be in a form and with an insurance company authorized 
to do business in South Carolina and have a rating of no less than A- VII by A.M. Best Co. 

 
(a) Commercial General Liability. Commercial General Liability insurance 

coverage on an occurrence basis insuring against all claims, loss, cost, damage, expense, or 
liability from loss of life or damage or injury to persons or property arising out of any 
of the work or activity under or by virtue of this Agreement. The minimum limit of liability 
for such coverage shall be Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit for any 
one occurrence. However, the parties acknowledge that GRANTEE may meet the policy 
limit in this section by combination of GRANTEE's General Commercial Liability Policy 
and GRANTEE's Umbrella or Excess Liability Policy. 

 
(b) Contractual Liability. Broad form Contractual Liability insurance, including 

the indemnification obligations of GRANTEE set forth in this Agreement. 
 

(c) Workers' Compensation. Workers' Compensation insurance covering 
GRANTEE’s statutory obligation under the laws of South Carolina and Employer's Liability 
insurance for all its employees engaged in work under this Agreement. 

 
(d) Automobile Liability. Automobile Liability insurance having minimum 

limits of liability of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit applicable to 
owned or non-owned vehicles used in the performance of any work under this 
Agreement. 

 
(e) Pollution Liability Insurance. GRANTEE shall maintain during the life of 

this Agreement Pollution Liability Insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) for each occurrence. Coverage shall be provided for bodily injury and property 
damage resulting from pollutants which are discharged suddenly and accidentally. Such 
insurance shall also provide coverage for cleanup costs. 

 
(f) Umbrella Coverage. The insurance coverages and amounts set forth in this 

Section may be met by an umbrella liability policy following the form of the underlying 
primary coverage in a minimum amount of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000). 

 
(g) Prior to commencing construction pursuant to this Agreement or within ten 

(10) days after the granting of the franchise contemplated by this Agreement, whichever is 



15  

sooner, GRANTEE shall provide the City with a memorandum certificate or certificates of 
insurance, showing the type, amount, effective dates, and date of expiration of the policies, 
and thereafter prior to the expiration of any such policy or change in the amount or 
conditions, of coverage. Such certificate or certificates and evidence of insurance shall 
include the City, its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds. GRANTEE shall 
obtain a written obligation on the part of each insurance company to notify GRANTEE at least 
thirty (30) days before cancellation or a material change of any such insurance. Upon receipt of 
such notice from GRANTEE's insurance company, GRANTEE will immediately notify the City 
of any of the required coverages that are not replaced. 

 
Section 8. Surety. 

 
(a) Within ten (10) days after the Effective Date of this Agreement, and prior to 

the commencement of any construction by GRANTEE, GRANTEE shall furnish and file 
with the City an irrevocable bond, in a form and by a surety authorized to do business in 
South Carolina, in the amount of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) securing its faithful 
performance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. GRANTEE shall maintain such 
bond for the duration of this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the 
City. Failure to maintain the bond shall be deemed a material default by GRANTEE of this 
Agreement. 

 
The bond shall guarantee GRANTEE’s faithful performance of the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, including, but not limited to: (1) the timely completion of 
construction; (2) compliance with applicable plans, permits, technical codes and standards; 
(3) proper location of the facilities as specified by the City; (4) restoration of the public ways 
and other property affected by the construction as required by this Agreement; (5) the 
submission of "as-built" drawings after completion of the work as required by this 
Agreement; (6) timely payment and satisfaction of all claims, demands or liens for labor, 
material or services provided in connection with the work; and (7) the payment by 
GRANTEE of all lawful liens, taxes, damages, claims, costs or expenses which the City has 
been compelled to pay or has incurred by reason of any act or default of GRANTEE under 
this Agreement and all other payments due the City from GRANTEE pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

 
(b) Whenever the City determines that GRANTEE has violated one (1) or more 

terms, conditions, or provisions of this Agreement for which relief is available against the 
bond, a written notice shall be given to GRANTEE. The written notice shall describe in 
reasonable detail the violation so as to afford GRANTEE an opportunity to remedy the 
violation.  GRANTEE shall have thirty (30) days subsequent to receipt of the notice in 



16  

which to correct the violation before the City may make demand upon the bond. Failure to 
maintain the bond shall be a material default under this Agreement. 

 
(c) Such bond shall be in addition to any performance, defect bond, or other 

surety required by the City in connection with the issuance of any construction or any 
successor ordinance. 

 
Section 9. Indemnification. GRANTEE agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the City, its officers, employees and agents from and against all claims, demands, 
losses, damages, liabilities, fines, and penalties, and all costs and expenses incurred in 
connection therewith, including, without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of 
defense (collectively, the losses), arising out of any breach by GRANTEE of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, except to the extent proximately caused by the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the City, its officers, employees and agents. In addition, GRANTEE 
shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless the C i t y ,  its officers, agents, and 
employees, from any and all demands for fees, claims, suits, actions, causes of action, 
or judgments based on the alleged infringement or violation of any patent, invention, 
article, arrangement, or other apparatus that may be used in the performance of any work 
or activity arising out of the use of any Telecommunication facilities or the provision 
of Telecommunication service, except to the extent proximately caused by the negligence of 
willful misconduct of the City, its officers, employees or agents. 

 
Section 10. Hazardous Substances. In its performance of this Agreement, 

GRANTEE shall not transport, dispose of, or release any hazardous substance, material, or 
waste, except as necessary in performance of its work under this Agreement, and in any event 
GRANTEE shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and 
ordinances controlling air, water, noise, solid wastes, and other pollution, and relating to the 
storage, transport, release, or disposal of hazardous material, substances, or waste. 
Regardless of the City's acquiescence, GRANTEE shall indemnify and hold the City, its 
officers, agents, employees, and volunteers harmless from all costs, claims, damages, causes 
of action, liabilities, fines, or penalties, including reasonable attorney's fees, resulting from 
GRANTEE's violation of this section and agrees to reimburse City for all costs and expenses 
incurred by the City in eliminating or remedying such violations. GRANTEE also agrees to 
reimburse the City and hold the City, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers harmless 
from any and all costs, expenses, attorney’s fees and all penalties or civil judgments obtained 
against any of them as a result of GRANTEE's use or release of any hazardous substance or 
waste onto the ground, or into the water or air from, near or upon the City's premises. For 
purposes of this Section, the following definitions shall apply: 



17  

 
"Hazardous Substances" means asbestos and any and all pollutants, dangerous 

substances, toxic substances, hazardous wastes, hazardous materials and hazardous 
substances as referenced or defined in, or pursuant to, any federal, state, local or other 
applicable environmental law, statute, ordinance, rule, order, regulation or standard in effect 
on the date hereof including, without limitation, the Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act (42 U.S.C 6901, et seq.), as amended, the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide 
Act (7 U.S.C. 136, et seq.), as amended, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. 9601, et seq.), as amended, and the Toxic 
Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. 2601, et seq.), as amended. 

 
As used in this Section, “release” includes the placing, releasing, depositing, spilling, 

leaking, pumping, emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, disposing, 
or dumping of any substance. 

 
Section 11. Fees 

 
(1) In consideration of the grant of authority to utilize the streets and public 

places of the City for the provision of Telecommunications Service, and in accordance with 
applicable law and ordinances, GRANTEE shall pay such franchise fees, business license 
taxes, and administrative fees as are presently permitted by Article 20 of Chapter 9 of Title 
58 of the 1976 Code of Laws of South Carolina, as enacted in 1999, and as may be enacted 
and imposed by the City. GRANTEE shall also pay all such ad valorem taxes, service fees, 
sales taxes, or other taxes and fees as may now or hereafter be lawfully imposed on other 
businesses within the City. Provided, however, that in the event that Article 20 of Chapter 9 
of Title 58 of the 1976 Code of Laws of South Carolina, as enacted in 1999, or other laws 
governing franchise fees, business license taxes and/or other fees with respect to  
Telecommunications Service shall be substantially modified by subsequent legislation or 
court decision, the provisions herein contained shall be brought into conformity with the 
changes in the applicable law by appropriate amendment to this agreement. If the limitations 
on the amount of franchise fees, administrative fees, and business license taxes on 
Telecommunications Service providers shall be removed or modified in the future, the City 
shall have the right to amend this agreement to impose such fair, reasonable, competitively 
neutral, and non-discriminatory fees and taxes as may then be permitted. GRANTEE will be 
free to challenge any tax or fee structure not in compliance with applicable law. 



18  

(2) For the use of the Right of Way, as defined by S.C. Code Section 58-9-2230, 
to provide Telecommunications Service, GRANTEE shall provide the service defined in 
Section 12 (Public Benefits) herein which fee is in lieu of any franchise fee, permit fee, 
encroachment fee, degradation fee, or other fee assessed on a Telecommunications Service 
provider for use of the Right of Way to the extent required by S.C. Code Section 58-9-2230. 

 
Section 12. Public Benefits. As a benefit to the public, GRANTEE agrees that it 

shall provide free, high-speed, state-of-the-art, fiber-fed public Wi-Fi service (one access 
point) in five (5) of the City's public parks as may be mutually agreed between GRANTEE 
and City. Such service shall be accessible to City residents and visitors, subject to 
GRANTEE’S terms of service and acceptable use policy. GRANTEE shall provide the City 
with an updated copy of GRANTEE’S terms of service and acceptable use policy whenever 
there are changes. Wi-Fi service will be installed and available no later than six (6) months 
after the telecommunications facilities pass each mutually agreed park and will continue 
throughout the term of this Agreement. 

 
Section 13. General provisions. 

 
(a) Authority. GRANTEE warrants and represents that it has obtained all 

necessary and appropriate authority and approval from all applicable federal, state and 
county agencies or authorities to provide all telecommunications facilities and services it 
intends to provide within the City, and upon request by the City will provide evidence of 
such authority. 

 
(b) Other remedies. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as waiving or 

limiting any rights or remedies that the City or GRANTEE may have, at law or in equity, for 
enforcement of this Agreement. 

 
(c) Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or other 

portion of this Agreement, or its application to any person, is, for any reason, declared 
invalid, in whole or in part by any court or agency of competent jurisdiction, said decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

 
(d) Nonenforcement. Neither party shall be excused from complying with any of 

the provisions of this Agreement by any failure of the other party, upon any one or more 
occasions, to insist upon strict performance of this Agreement or to seek the other party’s 
compliance with any one or more of such terms or conditions of this Agreement. 

(e) Conflicts of law. If there is a conflict between the provisions of this 
Agreement and any law, whether federal, state, or C i t y , including all future laws and 



19  

ordinances, the law and conflicting Agreement provision will, to the extent reasonably 
possible, be construed so as to be consistent with each other and if such construction is not 
reasonably possible, the conflicting provision of this Agreement shall be deemed superseded 
by such law and have no effect, notwithstanding the contract clause of the United States 
Constitution. 

 
(f) Controlling law and venue. By virtue of entering into this Agreement, 

GRANTEE agrees and submits itself to a court of competent jurisdiction in the City or in 
State Circuit Court in Lexington County, or in the United States District Court for the District 
of South Carolina, and further agrees that this Agreement is controlled by the laws of South 
Carolina or any applicable federal laws and that all claims, disputes and other matters shall 
be decided only by such court according to the laws of South Carolina or any applicable 
federal laws or by any regulatory body with jurisdiction, including the Federal 
Communications Commission. 

 
(g) Captions. The section captions and headings in this Agreement are for 

convenience and reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or 
interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
(h) Nondiscrimination. During the performance of this Agreement, GRANTEE 

agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment on the 
basis of race, religion, color, sex, handicap, or national origin. GRANTEE agrees to post in 
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting 
forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. GRANTEE, in all solicitations or 
advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of GRANTEE, will state that 
GRANTEE is an equal opportunity employer. Notices, advertisements, and solicitations 
placed in accordance with federal law, rule, or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the 
purpose of meeting the requirements herein. 

 
(i) Notices. (a) Notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and 

addressed as follows: 
 

To the City: City Manager   
City of Cayce 
1800 12th Street 
P.O. Box 2004 
Cayce, South Carolina 29171 

With a Copy to: City Attorney 
City of Cayce 



20  

1800 12th Street  
P.O. Box 2004 
Cayce, South Carolina 29171 

To GRANTEE: Chief Network Officer 
4100 Mendenhall Oaks Pkwy, Suite 300 
High Point, NC 27265 

 
With a Copy to: General Counsel 

4100 Mendenhall Oaks Pkwy, Suite 300 
High Point, NC 27265 

 
(b) Either party may change the address at which it will receive notices by providing 

written notice of the change to the other party. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement. 
 
 
 

LUMOS FIBER OF SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC 
A limited liability company 

 
By:   

 

Name:  
 

Title:  
 
 

State of   
Town/County of  , TO WIT; 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this   day of 

 , 2024 by   , of 
Lumos Fiber of South Carolina, LLC, a  company. 

 
 

Notary Public 
 

My commission expires:    
My registration number:   



21  

CITY OF CAYCE        
A South Carolina municipal corporation 

 
By:   

 

Name:  
 

Title:  
 
 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
CITY OF CAYCE , to-wit: 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this   day of 

 , 2024, by Tracy Hegler, City Manager of the City of Cayce, on its behalf. 
She is personally known to me. 

 
 

Notary Public 
 

My commission expires:    
My registration number:   



ITEM IV. B. 





MINUTES 
STANDARD TECHNICAL CODES BOARD OF APPEALS 

CAYCE CITY HALL 
1800 12TH STREET, CAYCE SC 

Monday, June 15, 2020 
5:30 PM 

I. CALL TO ORDER
The first Standard Technical Codes Board of Appeals meeting was called to order by
board member Erskin Suber at 5:30 P.M.  Mr. Suber called the meeting to order by
reading a script given to him by City Planning Director Carroll Willaimson to open the
meeting properly.  All board members introduced themselves and gave a quick
review of their professional background.  Mr. Suber, Michael Sexton, Craig Kirby,
Lawrence Gardner, and Frank Dedmon were present. Staff present were Carroll
Williamson, Jarrett Epperson, and Stuart Jones.  Mr. Williamson detailed the board’s
responsibilities and frequency of meetings. After Mr. Williamson explained this Mr.
Suber asked if the board was going to address condemned houses.  Mr. Willaimson
stated yes.  Mr. Suber then asked if the board would need to meet more once they
informed a resident their home needed to be condemned.  Mr. Jones stated that if a
home was in such poor condition that it had to be torn down then it was already
known by the property owner.  He stated in his entire career he had never had
someone appeal a condemnation on a house.

II. NEW BUSINESS
a. Nomination and election of Officers for 2020

Mr. Suber nominated Mr. Gardner as Chairman.  Mr. Gardner declined the
nomination.  Mr. Suber then nominated Mr. Sexton as Chairman and Mr. Gardner
seconded. All were in favor. Mr. Kirby nominated Mr. Gardner for Vice Chairman
and Mr. Dedmon seconded. All were in favor.

b. Nomination and election of Jarrett Epperson as Secretary for 2020
Mr. Gardner nominated Mr. Epperson as Secretary and Mr. Dedmon seconded.
All were in favor.

c. Approval of meeting schedule for 2020
Mr. Suber made the motion to approve the schedule and Mr. Gardner seconded.
All were in favor.

d. Adoption of Bylaws
Mr. Suber made a motion to approve the bylaws.  Mr. Gardner seconded. All were
in favor.

III. ADJOURNMENT
Mr. Gardner made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Dedmon seconded.  All
were in favor.

ITEM V. A. 



1 Cayce Housing Authority Board Minutes – Regular Board Meeting October 17, 2023 

October 17, 2023 
Regular Board Meeting of the Housing Authority of the City of Cayce, SC 

The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Cayce, SC held its Regular Board Meeting on 
Tuesday, October 17, 2023 at Cayce City Hall. 

Chairman Jack Sightler called the meeting to order at 5:05 pm. A copy of the agenda was posted on the Housing 
Authority’s website. 

Roll call was conducted, and attendance was as noted below: 

CH Board Members 
Columbia Housing Authority 
Staff Present 

Chairman Jack Sightler Present Yvonda A. Bean, Chief Executive Officer 
Vice-Chairman Bruce Smith Present Barry Hall, Chief Operating Officer 
Commissioner Johnetta Riley Present Cindi Herrera, Chief Development Officer 
Commissioner Silvia Sullivan Present Lee McRoberts, Chief of Staff 
Commissioner Cheryl Seymour Present Brianna Weston, Property Manager 

Damian White, Community Safety Manager 
Julia Gibbs, Project Manager 
Visitors: 
Mike Conley, City of Cayce 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Commissioner Smith opened with prayer. 

Chairman Sightler made a motion to approve the Agenda for the October 17, 2023 meeting, the motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Sullivan. Mrs. Bean asked that the Agenda be amended to add a “Discussion of Bylaws” item under “New 
Business”. Upon motion of Chairman Sightler, seconded by Commissioner Sullivan, the Agenda was approved as amended. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

Chairman Sightler called for a motion to approve the minutes of the June 20, 2023 and August 17, 2023 meetings. Upon 
motion of Commissioner Riley, seconded by Commssioner Sullivan, they were approved. 

Board Member Aye Nay Absent 
Chairman Jack Sightler X 
Vice-Chairman Bruce Smith X 
Commissioner Johnetta Riley X 
Commissioner Silvia Sullivan X 
Commissioner Cheryl Seymour X 

ITEM V. A. 



2 Cayce Housing Authority Board Minutes – Regular Board Meeting October 17, 2023  

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 

Mrs. Bean introduced Resolution 2023-004: Approval of Grounds Maintenance Pool. 
 

Cayce Housing issued a Request for Qualifications for Grounds Maintenance Services on August 10, 2023, with a proposal 
deadline of September 11, 2023. Grounds Maintenance Services includes lawn maintenance and other related services to 
maintain grounds and exterior conditions of CH properties. Responses were received from eight vendors. The evaluation 
committee scored each response in accordance with the criteria set forth in the solicitation. 

 
Staff recommends the selection of the below five (5) firms with the highest scores be selected for the Grounds Maintenance 
Pool. All firms will receive task orders for specific properties based on their responses to the solicitation. 

 
 

There was a general conversation regarding the benefits of working with a contractor pool. Mrs. Herrera said that it 
allows staff more flexibility if a vendor is busy and gives more vendors an opportunity to work by spreading projects 
among the pool. Commissioner Smith asked if pricing is better using multiple vendors. Mrs. Herrera said that it does help 
with pricing but that vendors were not selected just for pricing; experience also factored into scoring. Commissioner 
Riley asked how often work will be rotated among the proposed vendors, Mrs. Herrera said that it would occur 
approximately every 6 months. Chairman Sightler asked how long the contract terms will be; Mrs. Herrera said that they 
will be up to 5 years – 1 year initially with the option to extend annually for the next 4 years. Ms. Seymour asked if 
vendors can be terminated if they do not perform to CH expectations, Mrs. Herrera said that the contracts are structured 
to allow separation if needed. Chairman Sightler called for a motion to approve Resolution 2023-004, upon motion of 
Commissioner Seymour, seconded by Commissioner Sullivan, it was approved. 

 
Board Member Aye Nay Absent 
Chairman Jack Sightler X   
Vice-Chairman Bruce Smith X   
Commissioner Johnetta Riley X   
Commissioner Silvia Sullivan X   
Commissioner Cheryl Seymour X   

 
Resolution 2023-005: Approval of Disposition and Exit from Public Housing Program 

 
Mrs. Herrera gave a briefing on the proposed Resolution. HUD PIH Notice 2018-04 provided guidance for disposition of 
public housing for small PHA’s. In accordance with this guidance, the Authority has determined that it is in the best interest 
of the residents and the Authority, is consistent with the goals of the PHA and the PHA Plan and are otherwise consistent 
with the 1937 Act to dispose of the 41 Public Housing units to a non-profit affiliate of the Authority. All units will remain 
affordable under the Project Based Voucher Program and the Authority will exit the public housing program in accordance 
with all provisions set forth in PIH 2016-23. Mrs. Herrera said that the conversion will result in increased revenue and will 
allow for the creation of additional units beginning with the conversion of the Community Room at Poplar and Wilkinson 
into a residential unit. 



3 Cayce Housing Authority Board Minutes – Regular Board Meeting October 17, 2023  

Commissioner Riley asked if new tenants moving into Cayce Housing post conversion will have to have a Housing Choice 
Voucher to move in. Mrs. Herrera said that they will not need to be HCV program participants as the assistance is tied to 
the property. There was a discussion regarding choice mobility vouchers which allow tenants in project based voucher 
units to request a voucher after a year of residing in a PBV unit which would allow them to move anywhere in the US 
where housing choice vouchers are accepted. Mrs. Herrera said that as a small housing authority with less than 50 units the 
choice mobility option is not required, she also stated that Cayce Housing does not have a Housing Choice Voucher 
program and could not issue vouchers. 

 
Commissioner Riley asked if the residents at Abbot Arms could request Choice Mobility Vouchers. Mrs. Herrera said that 
Abbot Arms is also a project based assistance property and that Cayce Housing only acted as the bond issuer in that 
transaction and does not have any jurisdiction over the property. 

 
Mrs. Herrera said that the ownership structure of the Cayce units will change post-conversion. A 501c3 will be formed and 
will own the units, Cayce Housing will act as manager. Staff is working to complete final steps now and hope to finalize 
the conversion in January, 2024. The proposed Resolution is one of the steps that must be completed prior to closing. 
Additionally, the non-profit will have to formed, the application sent to HUD, final briefings held with current tenants and 
new leases executed under the new structure. Staff is working with the City of Cayce on a Letter of Support for the 
conversion that must be submitted with the application. Chairman Sightler asked who is driving the process with the City. 
Mrs. Herrera said that she and Mrs. Bean are communicating with City staff and have sent a draft of the letter to the City 
Manager for her review. Chairman Sightler asked if Columbia Housing has similar non-profit entities. Mrs. Herrera said 
that Columbia has several set up and that Attorney Campbell will complete the necessary documentation to form Cayce’s 
non-profit. Mrs. Herrera proposed that the new non-profit could be named the Cayce Redevelopment Corporation but 
added that the Board could choose whatever name they felt appropriate. 

 
Mrs. Riley said that the minutes of the August 17, 2023 Cayce Housing meeting referenced choice mobility for Cayce 
Housing tenants after a year of living in their current units. Mrs. Herrera said that current tenants could apply to Columbia 
Housing for a Choice Mobility Voucher but if they chose to remain in Lexington County the voucher would have to be 
ported out to State Housing for administration. 

 
There being no further questions or discussion, Chairman Sightler called for a motion to approve Resolution 2023-005, 
upon motion of Commissioner Riley, seconded by Commissioner Seymour, it was approved. 

 
CEO REPORT: 

 

Mrs. Bean gave an update on the Cayce Housing bylaws. A committee to review the bylaws was appointed at the June 
meeting; the committee includes Chairman Sightler, Commissioner Riley, Mrs. Bean and Attorney Bo Campbell. A 
meeting of the committee was held in September and the current bylaws were closely reviewed. Attorney Campbell is now 
working on a revised version based on the Committee’s input and ensuring compliance with State and local regulations 
and the existing operating agreement. The revised bylaws will be presented at the December meeting. Chairman Sightler 
said that he would like the Committee to meet again before the December meeting. Chairman Sightler asked staff to confirm 
the current operating agreement is still relevant before distributing the revised bylaws to the full Board. 

 
Mrs. Bean asked Ms. Weston to present the Operations Report. 

Ms. Weston reported the following: 



4 Cayce Housing Authority Board Minutes – Regular Board Meeting October 17, 2023  

June July August 

Accounts sent to Magistrate 0 1 0 

Account more than 30 days 1 3 4 

Work Orders received 0 38 12 

Work Orders Completed 0 36 4 

Work Orders Remaining 0 2 8 

Emergency Work Orders 0 14 0 

**Magistrate Update: 
 
June- zero cases sent to the magistrate. 

  

July- one causes sent to the magistrate 
  

 

August- zero cases sent to the magistrate. 
 
 

FINANCIAL UPDATE: 
 

Mrs. Bean presented the Financial Report. 
 

 

Mrs. Bean said that utilities were above budget due to higher temperatures in July and August and that Tenant Services was 
over budget due to tenants in units being renovated having to be temporarily relocated. Mrs. Bean said that staff is working 
with HSF Consulting on financial management after the resignation of the previous CFO. 



5 Cayce Housing Authority Board Minutes – Regular Board Meeting October 17, 2023  

Commissioner Smith asked how the process is going to get Cayce’s PHAS designation back up. Mrs. Bean said that a 
corrective action plan has already been put into place and that issues such as vacant units and bills not paid in a timely 
manner have already been corrected and staff expects an improved score going forward. 

 
Commissioner Seymour said that she is concerned about maintenance issues not being corrected completely after being 
reported. She stated that contractor had begun work earlier in the year and never returned to complete the work, she also 
expressed concern over the quality of work done to the Spencer Place units during renovation. Mrs. Gibbs said that staff is 
currently looking at options to correct some of those issues and will be in touch with Ms. Seymour soon to discuss next 
steps. Mrs. Bean introduced Julia Gibbs as the Senior Project Manager in the Capital Assets department. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business and upon motion of Commissioner Smith, seconded by Commissioner Seymour, it was 
unanimously approved to end the meeting at 6:05 pm. 

 
Prepared by: 

 
Yvonda A. Bean 
Secretary/Chief Executive Officer 



Events Committee Minutes 
November 9, 2023 

Present: Danny Creamer, Maxine Creamer, Johnathon Moore, Alexis Moore, Megan Lightle, Ebony Reed, 

Absent:  Alyssa Daniel, Carrie Ridgeway, Dwede Dennis, Dave Capps 

City Representatives: Amanda Rowan, James Denny 

Mr. Moore opened the meeting.  

The committee reviewed the October 12, 2023 minutes. Ms. Lightle made a motion to approve.  Mr. 
Thomas seconded, and motion was unanimously passed. 

Old Business: 
Ms. Rowan stated that the City currently has 13 bands lined up for the Carols Along the Riverwalk. Mr. 
Denny and staff will review the layout and placement of bands before the event.  Mr. Capps volunteered 
previously to stay at Brookland Cayce High School with Bobby George. Ms. Rowan asked committee 
members to volunteer starting at 2pm to decorate and set out luminaries. Ms. Creamer volunteered to 
make the hot chocolate mix with Mr. Creamer dropping it off if she wasn’t feeling well. Mr. Denny told 
the committee that there would be additional urns this year to prevent the hot water from running out.  

New Business: 
The City is hosting its annual appreciation dinner November 10, 2023 on State Street from 6:00 to 8:00 
pm.  Members were asked to RSVP to Ms. Rowan if attending. 

Mr. Thomas submitted his resignation to the committee after being elected to City Council.  He wished 
the committee well and stated he would still be in touch when needed. 

With no further business, Ms. Moore made a motion to adjourn, and Ms. Lightle seconded. 
Motion carried and the meeting was adjourned. 

The next Events Committee meeting will be January 11, 2024, at 5:30 PM in Council Chambers. 

ITEM V. A. 



Page 1 of 3

Cayce Historical Museum Commission

January 1, 2024

Meeting Minutes

The January 1, 2024 meeting of the Cayce Historical Museum Commission (CHMC) was held in the
Cayce Visitors Center. The meeting was convened at 4:02pm by Vice Chair Pamela Sulton, as Chair
James Stewart was absent due to work travel. The following individuals attended the meeting:

Name Status
James Stewart Chair (absent)
Pamela Sulton Vice Chair
Marcy Hayden Secretary
Archie Moore Commissioner
A.G. Dantzler Commissioner
Charlita Earle Commissioner
Garrett Creasman Commissioner
David Brinkman Commissioner
Andy Thomas Cayce Museum Curator
Elizabeth Lumsden Cayce Museum Assistant
Jeff Wilkinson Volunteer
Mike Conely Asst. City Manager

Upcoming Events:
1/23 or 1/30- Strategic Planning Session, Part 2 for Museum Commission from 12-4pm.
1/25-TBA Native American Lecture-Marcy Hayden
2/8-African American Exhibit Opening Reception 6pm-8pm
2/22-Sweet Night at the Museum (TBA)

Invocation: Commissioner Dantzler

Action Items:

September Meeting Minutes:
The Commission reviewed the previous meeting minutes. Commissioner Moore asked for a typo
to be changed. Commissioner Creasman motioned that the meeting minutes be accepted with
change. Commissioner Earle seconded the motion, and the minutes were approved by unanimous
vote.

Review of the By-Laws:

Vice Chair Sulton passed out copies of the by-laws, which were also sent via email to all Commissioners,
for annual review. Vice Chair Sulton asked that everyone review the by-laws for any updates or changes

ITEM V. A. 



Page 2 of 3

that need to be addressed. She asked Commissioners if they had any to bring to the floor at this meeting
and if not, they will have the opportunity at the future meeting.

Nominations for Officers:

Vice Chair Sulton reviewed the voting procured and read aloud the email from Chair Stewart
regarding the elections and his self-nomination. This was also provided via email prior to the
meeting to all Commissioners. Vice Chair Sulton opened the floor for nominations for the
position of Chair. Commissioner Cresman nominated Mr. Stewart for Chair in additional to Mr.
Stewart’s self nomination. Commissioner Moore seconded the motion and the motion was
carried with unanimous vote. The Chair for 2024 will be Commissioner James Stewart.

Nominations were open for Vice Chair and Ms. Sulton self-nominated and there was a motion by
Commissioner Creasman. This was seconded by Commissioner Brinkman and the motion was
carried with unanimous vote. The Vice Chair for 2024 will be Commissioner Pamela Sulton.

Vice Chair Sulton nominated Ms. Marcy Hayden to serve another term as Secretary.
Commissioner Hayden agreed. Vice Chair Sulton made a motion and Commissioner Creasman
seconded. The motion was carried with unanimous vote. The Secretary for 2024 will be
Commissioner Marcy Hayden.

Strategic Planning

The Commissioners completed the first part of the strategic planning process on October 11 with
StopGap Solutions. The next session will occur on January 23rd or 30th, 2024 from 12-4pm at
the Museum. Finalized date will be sent out via email.

Museum Staff Report

Staff reported that the Traditions event for Christmas in Cayce had around 59 attendees. The
lower turn out was due to the rain cancelation and rain again on the rescheduled date. Staff will
save discussion of the event and storage of items for the next meeting.

The appraisal for Catawba Pottery Collection has been completed and Mr. Thomas has received
the final report. The report has some great information and it is suggested that the City needs to
increase insurance coverage to include the pottery. Copies of the report are available to
Commissioners.

Electrical repairs to the Public Safety building have been completed. A RFP has gone out for a
sealed bid to repair the Museum windows which need to be replaced with wooden windows and
the city has bids for approval. There are 15 windows that need to be replaced. Additionally, bids
have been received to do repairs on the floor and walls of the Public Safety building.

The Museum staff changed hours to drop Sunday and increase Saturday hours. The new hours on
Saturday will be from 10am to 2pm. The staff is scheduling a homeschool event on March 9th.
Details (TBA).



Page 3 of 3

The Confederate money floating wall is up and has a case and pedestal ready for the exhibit
update. Additionally, the Columbia Airport Exhibit will be the changing exhibit area and will
replace the speedway exhibit.

“Sweet Night” has been developed by Mr. Thomas to serve as a fundraiser, introduction to the
Cayce Historical Foundation and Museum and is being planned for February. Five local bakeries
are invited to attend and will have silent auction baskets, speakers and additional activities.
Additional baskets and silent auction items are needed. This event is currently scheduled for
February 22nd and additional information will be provided.

Historic Preservation

No updates at this time.
.
Donations

No updates at this time.

Old State Road NRHP Nomination

No updates at this time.

Christmas Events
Discussion will be held during the February meeting.

Additional Business:

Commissioner Creasman asked about the Fire Truck and issues with the brakes that prevented it
from being used in the parade. Additionally, Vice Chair Sulton wanted to discuss a recap of the
year discussed in Chair Stewart's email. There was discussion of missing items and the need to
do an archives project, possibly with intern assistance to make sure we have an accurate record
of all the items in storage. This has not been maintained over the years up to best practice
standards according to staff and Commissioners. This items will be added to an upcoming
discussion.

With no other business on the meeting agenda, Commissioner Sharpe motioned to adjourn the
meeting. Commissioner Creasman seconded the motion and the Commission voted unanimously
to adjourn the meeting at 4:50 PM.



Mayor 
Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem 
Tim James 

Council Members 
Phil Carter 

Hunter Sox 
Byron Thomas 

City Manager 
Tracy Hegler 

Deputy City Manager 
Jim Crosland 

Assistant City Manager 
Michael Conley 

1800 12th Street | PO Box 2004 | Cayce SC 29171 
P 803 796 9020 | F 803 796 9072 

caycesc.gov 

APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONDAY, JANUARY 22, 2024 
CAYCE CITY HALL - 1800 12th  Street 

6:00 PM 

I. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by Vice Chair Richard Boiteau.  Chair Ed Fuson resigned from 
the Commission in December 2023. Commissioners present were Nancy Stone-Collum, Patty Foy, Robert 
Power, Michael Mahoney, Michael Wuest and Danny Creamer. Staff present were Michael Conley and 
Monique Ocean. 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A motion was made Nancy Stone-Collum to approve the minutes of May 15, 2023, Planning Commission 
meeting.  Robert Power seconded the motion.  All were in favor.  Danny Creamer abstained from voting.  

III. STATEMENT OF NOTIFICATION
The Secretary confirmed that the media and the public had been made aware of the meeting. 

IV. COMMISSION MATTERS
a. Review and Amendment of By-Laws

Commissioners asked Staff for clarification on parts of the By-Laws. Commissioners requested clarification 
regarding Article I Organization, Article III Public Hearing, and Article V Review Procedure. Staff 
responded that these items will be reviewed and explanations or amendments can be provided at the next 
Planning Commission meeting.  Michael Wuest made a motion to revisit the current By-Laws after staff has 
had a chance to research and provided a response to questions from the Commission. Patty Foy seconded 
the motion.  All were in favor.  

b. Nomination and election of Officers for 2024
Nancy Stone-Collum made a motion to elect Richard Boiteau as Chair. Danny Cremer seconded the 
motion.  All were in favor. Richard Boiteau made a motion to elect Robert Power as Vice Chair. Patty Foy 
seconded.  All were in favor. 

c. Nomination and election of Monique Ocean as Secretary for 2024
All were in favor of appointing Monique Ocean as secretary. 

d. Approval of meeting schedule for 2024
All were in favor of the meeting schedule for 2024. 

V. NEW BUSINESS
There was no new business.

VI. ADJOURNMENT
Robert Power made a motion to adjourn.  Michael Wuest seconded the motion.  All were in favor.

ITEM V. A. 



City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

March 5, 2024

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEAL – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
The Board of Zoning Appeal currently has two (2) open positions.  The City has received potential member 
applications from Ms. Mary Winter Teaster and Mr. Garrett Williams in that order.  Their applications are attached 
for Council’s review.      

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

The following positions remain open until receipt of potential member applications. 

There are currently no open positions.   

APPOINTMENT PROCESS 

Cayce citizens have an opportunity to actively participate in the City through their services on a number of 
advisory boards, commissions, foundations and committees. These groups help shape and carry out policy. 

Applications are accepted at any time for all City of Cayce boards, commissions, foundations and 
committees.  Cayce citizens wishing to apply for appointment may submit a potential member application to 
the Municipal Clerk, P. O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171. More information and a copy of the application can 
be found on our website at caycesc.gov or by calling City Hall at 803-796-9020. 

City Council considers received applications at a meeting immediately following an opening. 

ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 





ITEM V. B. 




	Agenda
	Item I. B. - February 6, 2024 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item I. B. - February 21, 2024 Council Work Session Minutes
	Item I. B. - February 21, 2024 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item III. A. - White Paper Cayce Housing Authority support letter 1.17.24
	Item III. A. - Housing Authority Letter
	Item III. B. - White Paper Hidden City Music Festival
	Item III. B. - Hidden Music Fireworks Summary
	III. B. - Attachment Fireworks Permit form
	Item III. C. - White Paper Riverwalk Boardwalk Repair_FINAL
	Item IV. A. - White Paper -Lumos franchise agreement Second Reading
	Item IV. A. - Redline Lumos-Cayce Franchise Agreement FINAL
	Item IV. B. - Resolution New County Transportation Committee
	Item V. A. - Standard Technical Codes Board of Appeals June 15, 2020 Minutes
	Item V. A. - Cayce Housing Authority October 17, 2023 Minutes
	Item V. A. - Events Committee November 9, 2024 Minutes
	Item V. A. - Museum Commission January 4, 2024 Minutes
	Item V. A. - Planning Commission January 22, 2024 Minutes
	Item V. B. - Appts and Reappts Report
	Item V. B. - Teaster Potential Member Application
	Item V. B. - Williams Potential Member Application_001

